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PREFACE.

The moderate distance of New Rochelle from the city
of New-York, combined with its other advantages, justly
entitle it to the large share of public petrunage it now en-
joys, and which it is hoped will be still further incressed.
To those persons who do not wish to enter the gay and
extensive circles of fashionable watering places, this de-
lightful spot will afford all the enjoyments of retirement
and tranquillity ; while the equestrian. the pedestrian, the
artist, and the angler. may here foiiow their respective
smusements, and be equally delighted with the romantic
and picturesque forms of nature, sided by the pleasing
embellishments of art,






AN
HISTORICAL SKETCH,

AXD

GUIDE TO NEW ROCHELLE.

New RocHELLE is a neat and cheerful town in
the Couuty of West Chester, State of New-York,
18 miles north-east of New-York, and 10 from the
baif shire town of White Plains. It is agreeably
situated near the banks of Long Island Sound,
and commands extensive views of its waters.
This town formerly constituted a portion of the
Manor of Pelham, till it was purchased by the
Hugonots in 1689, through the agency of Gov.
Leisler,* of John Pell, proprietor of the Manor.
The tract consisted of six thousaud one hundred
acres, which they settled, and called New Ro-
CHELLE, after their native city La Rochelle in

France, the capital of the department of Lower
Charente,

* This remarkable man took the lead in 2 populer movesment in 009,
when be assumed the government. He was aftarwands tried on & charge
of high treasge., sad esecuted. His attainder was reversed ot & later po-
tied, by act of Parliament, and his estates revtered to his family.
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THE INDIANS.

The aboriginal proprietors of the soil were the
SiwaxNovs,® a tribe of the mighty Mohegan na-
tion, originally called Muhhckanew, or the Seven
Tribes on the Sea Coast,t otherwise called Mo-
higgans by the Euglish, and Mahicauders, or
River Iundians, by the low Dutch.? <« The coun-
try between the banks of the Connecticut river
and the Hudson,” says Baucroft, < was possessed
by independent villages of the Mohegans, kindred
with the Maubattans, whose few smokes once
arose amidst the forest on New-York island.™§
Our native Sachems, also, appear to have been
closely united to the rcnowned and warlike Pe-
quots of Connecticut; for, at an early date, we
find the Mohegan nation and the Pequots,|| (in a
grand council for keeping their land entire,) agree-
ing to a grand matrimonial alliance between
Uncas, a chieftain of the royal blood of the Pe-
quots, and a daughter of Tatobams, a son of the
Sachem, Wopegwosit, and there is little doubt
that the Mohegan nation, of which our Siwanors
were but a tribe, recognized the supremacy of the
Pequots ; for in 1774 the government of Con-

* X.Y. Hist. Soc., 2d Series, Vol. L., pp. 396, 207.
* Ditto st Series. Vol IL. p. 6.
2 N. Y. Hist., 9d Sevies, Vol. L., p. 398,

¢ Bancroft’'s Hist. C. &, Vol. 1L, p. 290.
* Mosmachusstty Rist Soc., Dor.
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necticut officially stated that the title of the lands
of that state were vested in the Pequots, and that
their grand Sachem, Sasacus, had under him
twenty-six Sachems, and that their territory ex-
tended from Narragansetts to Hudson’s river, and
over all Long Island, then inhabited by the fierce
and warlike Matouwacs.

There is good proof from the quantities of oyster
and clam beds to be found along the banks of the
gound, that our sea shores and bays must have
been favourite fishing grounds with the Indians,*
while our woods and fields attest the existence of
bunting grounds by the number of arrow-heads
found in every direction.

Since the year 1689, our Indians have been
gradually diminishing before the approach of ci-
vilization, and are now represented by the Bro-
therton Indians of this state, and the Mohegans
and Stonington Indians of Connecticut;t the
only remnant of the mighty Muhhekanew, or the
river tribes on the sea-coast.} [n the year 1687,
just after the destruction of the Mohawk castles
by the French. Governor Donjon advised§ the five

* Within a very short period there have been old persons liviag. who
ecould recollect when Davenport’'s Neck was covered by Indian villages.

* N. Y. Hist. Soc., Ist Series, Vol I, p. 43

1 See Brooke's Gazetteer, which represents the actual sember of these
tribes as now exisling, Mobhegans at 300, Stonington 59, Brotherton 308.

$ Colden’s Rist. of the Five Nations, Vel. L, p. 85.
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nations to open a path for all the North Indians
and Mohicanders, (or river Indians,) that were
among the Ottaway and other natious, and to use
every endeavour to bring them home. Even as
late as 1689 the Indianus were in the habit of com-
inggdown into the lower part of Scarsdale, from
the ncighbourhood of White Plains, for a cider
frolic ; which they considered as a kind of quit-
rent for their rights as ancient proprietors of the
soil. The late Mrs. Le Count, an inhabitant of
the town. who lived to the extraordinary age of
105, recollected, when a girl of eight or ten years
old, frequently being frightened by them on’going
to school.

INDIANFBURYING GROUND.

THE point of land in Pelham called originally
Annhook’s Neck, is the ancient burial“place of
our native SiwaNo¥s.

Many graves or mounds are to be found scat-
tered around near the water’s edge, on the property
of the late George Rapalye. Esqr. This spot is
covered by a fine woud, Iving neariy at the head
of an open creek rendered always accessible for
boats at any state of the tide.

At the extreme point of this beautiful neck,
overlooking a magnificent bay {which needs no
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description to recommend its scenery) are situat-
ed the graves of the SiwaNors sachems; chiefs
of the mighty Mohegan nation,

“ W ho, for courage bold ; for things warreegan
« \Were the glory of all Mohezan.”*

Two graves, in particular, are still pointed out
ag containing the remains of the two last native
chiefs, who lived to an advauced age and held
intercourse with their European invaders. The
names of these Sachems were Himbam and
Arnhook.

THE HUGONOTS,

Or French Protestants, came directly from Eng-
land, and were a part of the 50,000 persecuted
who fled into that country four years before the re-
vocation of the celebrated edict of Nantes. This
is confirmed by the Charter of Trinity Church in
New Rochelle, wherein they specify that ¢ they
fled from France in 1631.” The point on Da-
venport’s Neck, called Bauffet's Point, is said to
be the spot where they first Janded.

They contiiived to arrive from England, as far
as can be ascertained, till the year 1700, for there
is still preserved in the Bonnett family a passport
(from the Mayor of Bristol, in England, of this

* Epiwph on Sam Unces, grandson of Uaces, grand Sechom.
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date,) to their arcestor Daniel Bonnett, « which
certifies the bearer thereof to be very well known
to persons of credit and repute of the French
refugees in Bristol, a French Protestant himself,
of good repute, and who had lived there ten
years.” On his arrival here he purchased land
of Bartholomew L.c Roux, one of the first settlers.

For some time all the exertions the Hugonots
could make, men, women and children uuited,
were necessary to prepare the land for cultiva-
tion, and enable them to pay for its purchase,
which their perseverance at last accomplished.

New RocuELLE at an early period was a place
of some resort. not only for the acquirement of
the French language, but on account of the hospi-
tality and politeness of its inhabitants.

For two generations the Hugonots of this town
appear to have preserved, in its purity, the French
language ; thus testifving the'r natural attachment
to their native land, the sepulchre of their fore-
fathers, and to which perhaps they cherished the
hope of a return. But their cause was doomed
never to survive the surrender of old La Rochelle,
the city that had aiways stood firmiy auached to
the reformed interests. This city afforded, in
1572, an asylum for the survivors of the bloody
massacre of St. Bartholomew. It was here they
tssued their famous declaration stating the affai
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to be one of unheard of cruelty, and bidding defi-
ance to their encmies, the House of Guise, “aund
it was here they armed aud fortified themselves,
trusting in a just cause and to the favour of Hea-
ven. For nine monuths they fought most gallantly
in defence of La-Rochelle, killing 40,000 of their
enemies, who besicged them with the strongest
and mightiest army of Frauce without success.
Again in 1627 it made its last and ever memora-
ble stand for the cause of the Hugonots.

¢ And it may safely be said that this mighty city
would never have fallen, {such was the undaunted
heroism of the Rochellois themselves,) had it not
been for the powerful minded genius of Cardinal
Richelieu, who planned and executed such a
mighty work against it, that in gigantic extent
it has been compared by historians to the similar
one executed by Alexander the Great before Tyre.
The powerful mind of Richielicu saw at a glance
that it was useless to carry on the longest siege
against the city of I.a Rochelle, whilst a free
communication remained opened to the sea on
which the town was situated. He therefore
closed the mouth of their channel by the erection
of a prodigious mole 4482 feet across the harbour
with a central opening. The frame work of this
mole coasisted of huge piles, which was filled up
with stones. and 6 hulks sunk with the same ma-
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terial for the purpose of buttresses. One arm of
this iinmense dyke overlapped the other, so that
the entrance instead of being in front was lateral :
a stockade of piles interlaced with chains effectu-
ally stopped the passage. This work he complet-
ed and defended by 45,060 men, while forty
picces of canuon on the one shore and twenty-
five on the other flanked the approaches ; and the
narrow passage in its ceutre (of 150 feet,) guard-
ed by a flotilla of vessels.”*

Their Euglish friends made some strong ef-
forts in their behalf by sca; but in vain. Yet
neither the bitterness of their disappointments, nor
the death of their friends, could diminish the
constancy of the Rochellois. 1n spite of disease
and famine they declined to surrender; until the
famine, according to their own accounts, began
to be horrible,* and death carried off its three
hundred victims a day: their houses filled with
ghastly corpses, they were unable to bury their
dead. The miserable Rochellois, reduced from
15,000 souls to less than one-third of that num-
ber, now beat a parley, and submitted to Riche-
lieuw’s terms, October 28th, A. D). 1628. Such was
the last and most famous seige of old La Ro-

* 3medley’s Hist. of Reform. Religion in France, Vol. 10, p. 184,
Harper's edition.
* Smediey's Hist. Reform. Religion. p. 167.
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chelle, which was followed by an edict that for ever
annihilated its independence and violated the
conditions upon whieh it surrendered to its ene-
mies. When the heroic Guiton, its governor,
heard of the extinction of his dignity, he exclaim-
ed against such perfidy with bitterness ; « Had I
known (he said) that the king would bhave failed
in his promises, he might have entered the city,
but not while a single man remained alive within
its circuit.”™®

The Roman Catholic religion was now declared
the established faith, and the Hugonot Church
converted into a Romish Cathedral. With the
surrender of La Rochelle were extinguished the
chief hopes of the reformed. For a short period
they revived under the favourable government of
Cardinal Mazarin, prime minister of France;
but on his death in 1661, and the accession of
Louis XIV. to the French throne, they finally sunk.
To enter into the minute particulars of this disas-
trous period is not the object of this small work ;
suffice it to say, that now commenced a renewal
of all the outrageous proceedings of former years.
Commissioners were sent into ali the provinces to
dispossess the reformed of all they held, as citizens ;
nothing now awaited them but fines, humiliation

* Smediey’s Rist. Reform. Religion, p. 17.
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and poverty. Troops of soldiers were quartered
among them, who inflicted the most horrid bar-
barities, while others scoured the country and
dragooned men into false confessions. And not
only this, but hundreds were condemned to the
galleys and sent to the French provinces in
America. One of their own ministers, Jeurieu,
informs us that a friend of his saw a great num-
ber of men at Arles fastened to the horses, under-
neath, by means of cords, followed by long carts
filled with men and women tied by their waists to
the carts ! and these were carried to Marseilles to
be sent to America; others again were sent to the
islands of America in the king’s ships, to be sold,
like slaves, to those who would give most for
them.*

“ Now it was, that, despairing of repose around
their native hearths, whole families in France
sought a foreign asylum, and emigration was
encouraged by other Prote.tant states, who ap-
preciated and sympathized with their misfortunes,
England took the lead in this work of charity.
King Charles I1. granted letters of denizatica
issued in councii under the greai seal; assured
the exiles that at the next meeting of Parliament
he would introduce a bill by which they should be

$ Jeusiou's Pastosnl Letters.
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ized ; relieved them at the moment from im-
rtation duties, and passport fees ; and encourag-
voluntary contributions for their support.”*
e Hugonots of this town were a few of those
xiles who accepted this royal offer; and after-
wards, under the patronage of that governmnent,
and settled here in 1689. Yet amid all
e bardships and suffering incident to a laborious
ife in an uncultivated and strange country,
ey wrote to their fricnds in Fraunce, expressing
ir gratitude to heaven for the advantages they
njoyed in this laud of liberty.
¢ There are few historical notices of importance
be mentioned in connection with Ncw Ro-
HELLE, except that on the 18th Oct. 1776, Gen.
owe, the British commander, united his forces
Pell’s Point, now known as the neck in Pel-
. and moved forward with his whole army
rough Pelham Manor towards Nzw Rocazrrzx.
ere some skirmishes took place, in which a
of both armies were engaged. The conduct
the Americans, on this occasion, is mentioned
ith satisfaction by General Washington. On
he 158th of the same mounth, Lord Howe took
in New RocuzriLe, Gen. Washington oc-
upying the intermediate heights between the two

* Smedicy's Hist. of Reform Religion, Yol. (0., p. 217. This endec
isoued a9th July. 1081.
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rivers. Whilst in New RocHELLE, the British
were joined by the second division of Germans,
under the command of General Knyphausen, and
by an incomplete regiment of cavalry from Ire-
land, some of which had been captured on their
passage. From New RocHeLLE both armies
moved towards White Plains, where an engage-
ment took place on the 25th of Oct. 1776.7%

The House of Cliuton Gilbert, Esq. is said to
have been used by the British as an hospital for
the wounded soldiery.

om———

THE CHURCH

On the left of the main street of the town i
the Church, a chaste, Gothic structure of
surmounted by a ncat tower and spire of the
materials, dedicated to The Holy Trinity.t

On the right of the present edifice stood
second Hugonot Church of stone, long since
troyed. Probably a model of the ancient H
not Church of old La Rochelle, which appears
bave been destroyed by fire in 1687, on Co
Christi Day, just two years before the H

* Marshall's Washington, Vol L, p. 111.
t The first church erected by the Hugoaots ia this tewa was balk
woed, sad stood on the property of Dr. Smith.
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nots themselves purchased the present township.
Jeurieus, a minister of the Reformed Church, in
one of his pastoral letters, addressed to the ¢ Pro-
testants of France groaning under the Babylon-
ish captivity,” refers to this event, which he
evidently considers a remarkable interposition of
God in their behalf. <« It is nothiug less notori-
ous (says he) than the burning of the great Church
of old La Rochelle. This Church was formerly
the great Church of the Reformed; they (the
Romanists) took it away from them after the
siege and taking of the city. Every one knows
that the day on which the inhabitants made a
bonfire, the fire took hold of this large and fair
Church, none knows how, nor where ; and that
it was consumed, the lead melted, and all the
vaults burned, without being able to quench it.
There is something =ingular in the event, the
day, and the occasion, and ’tis impossible not to
see the finger of God therein.”*

In 1689, we find John Pell, proprietor of the
Manor of Pelham, giving one hundred acres of
land for the use of the French Church in New
Rochelle.

In the rear of the present Church is the old
burial ground; where lie, awaiting the resurrec-

© Jourieu's Pastoral Letters, p. S8
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tion of the just, many of the persecuted and e
Hugonots.

Prior to the erection of the first Church in N,
RocHELLE, the devoted inhabitants of this
walked regularly every Saturday evening to N
York, a distance, by the road at that time,
twenty-three miles, to attend the Sunday sern
at the old Church du St. Esprit, in Pine
and returned on the Sabbath evening to
bomes, to be ready for their weekly avocations
Monday. To them the service of the temple
a delight. When they erected the stone ch
such was their anxiety and true pious devot
that the females assisted by carrying stones
their hands and mortar in their aprons.*
first minister was a Frenchman, the Rev.
Bondet, whom they supported by voluntary
tributions, aided by a small allowance from
state government. At first Mr. Bondet used
French Prayers, according to the Prot
Churches of France; but in the year 17(9
congregation, with the exception of two i
duals, followed the example of their French
formed brethren in England and New York,

conforming to the English Church.t 1:3.

* The foundation stons wae Jaid by Governor Hunter, sad
alse made to the Church a Kberal donation of plate, etc.
* Hist. Prepagat, Sec. by Dr. Humphirey, p. 97.
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this, the Hugonots followed the sentiment of their
own Church, which, fromn the beginning of the
Reformation to this time, had allowed it to be
lawful to do so, and condemned those who made
any separation, but from the Church of Rome.*
The Rev. Mr. Bondet preached to his flock, every
third Sunday, in English as well as in French.
He seems to have been very acceptable, the con-
gregation being large, and the number of com-
municants 50.

In 1711, the old Church became ruinous, and
another was erected by public contribution. The
town of NEw RocuEeLLE also gave a house and
three acres of land to the minister.

Mr. Boudet died in 1722, much lamented : he
appears to have been minister of the parish for
twenty years.

Mr. Bondet was succeeded in 1723 by the
Rev. Mr. Stoupe. This gentleman also proved
very acceptable, and the more so, because he
could preach in Freuch, which language only
most of the people understood.

* B&2a, owe of ibe most powerful advocates for the Hugonots, wrote
1o some of them who wege discontented in England. conjuring them by
all that is good and sacred not to forseke the communion of the Charch
of Eagland for such indifferent rites and ceremonies as were there imposed
wpon them. Pexa, Ep. xii, p. 186. Calvin, the founder of the Fremch
Chaarches, passes an anathema wpon those who forsake the communics of
Ovthedex Bishops where they are to be had. Calvia de Necowsit Reformn
Eocles., tom. xiii., p. 90. See Bema. Resp. ad Sazuv., cap. xviii.

b
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In 1743, we fiud the congregation of this
Church addressing a letter to the ¢ Propagation
Society,” on behalf of their minister, then on a
visit to his friends in England. It is curious, as
showing who the members of the Church were, at
that time, and may be interesting to their de-
scendants, many of whom still adhere to the
Church of their forcfathers. ®

The present beautitul edifice was erected by
public coutribution in 1824, and consecrated by
the Right Rev. John Croes, Bishop of New Jer-
sey, in the absence of the late lamented Hobart,
then on a visit to England.

The Rev. Thomas W. Coit, D. D, is the pre-
sent Rector.

The officers of the Church consist of two
churchwardens and six vestrymen, elected ap-
nually, according to the charter, on Tuesday in
Easter week.

There is a neat Chapel in the main street
belonging to the Presbyterians; also a Meet
ing-house of the Weslevan Methodists. The
present Presbyterian minister is the Rev. Mr.
Sneider.

® Sec Appendix. A
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POPULATION, STEAM-BOAT LANDING, FISHING,
&c.

The advantages presented by the proximity of
the Sound are of great importance to the town.
Besides the shipping of various market produce
on board the sloops, there is the convenience of a
daily steamboat to the city during the summer
months, and three times a week in the winter.
By this means great quantities of produce are sent
to the New-York markets, at reasonable rates.
There are several hotels which afford excellent
accommodation to parties visiting NeEw Ro-
cHELLE for the amusement of fishing, the salu-
brity of its air, or the beauty of its scenery.

Comtortable private boarding is also to be pro-
cured in the town and neighbourhood.

The L.e Roy House, in the town of Ngw Ro-
CHELLE, 1S an cxcellent and comfortable estab-
lishment, well suited for those who prefer the
small stir of a village, while they are not too far
removed from the banks of the Sound. Its pro-
prietor is Mr. Baunks.

There are also two otliei exceiieni hoiels in the
village well managed,—the Mansion House and
New Rochelle Hotel.

The steam-boat landing, about balf a mile 8.
W. of the village, is delightfully situated. It is

i
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approached by a solid causeway of stone, which
leads to the dock, aud to a well built Hotel called
the Neptune House. This establishment is well
situated on account of its close vicinity to the
water. It stands in the centre of a small wooded
island, approached by the causeway above men-
tioned. At high water the scenery presented in
front of the Hotel is altogether uurivalled: the
barbour in the foreground—the long surface of
the waters, stretching seven miles across to Long
Island ; the winding streams of the creeks oa
each side, and Davenport’s Neck and Island,
around, help to fill up the landscape ; and, in addi-
tion to the healthiness of the spot, give it advan-
tages which few of our watering places possess.
The buildings and improvemeuts oun this Island
bave been erected at the private cost of Philip
Underhill, Esq.

Here also the angler and sailor can enjoy their
tastes to perfection. The accommodations are
on an extensive scale, and the whole is under the
excellent management of Mr. Rice.

Here all the luxuries of =ea-bathing may like-
wise be enjoyed, without the incoveniences of a
heavy surf or publicity.

Pleasure bhoats and fishing tackle can also be
procured on the spot.

The principal resort for anglers is the East
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Chester Creek Bridge, in Pelham. On this bridge,
when the tide serves, fish of various kinds, and
particularly bass of a large size, are to be taken.
A streaked bass of 45 Ibs. was found dead on the
rocks, directly in front of this bridge, in the sum-
mer of 1841, where it is supposed to have cast
itself. They have also occasionally been taken
alive, of nearly that weight.

The erection of this bridge appears to bave
been commenced by a company of gentlemen of
the neighbourhood, some few years ago, who, afler
sustaining severe losses, relinquished the enter-
prise, which it was reserved for the late George
Rapelye, Esq., to complete. The bridge has
since been purchased of his heirs, and is now
rented by Mr. Fowler, who bears an admirable
character for the manner in which he sustains
this favourite baunt of the angler. If it regarded
scenery alone, this spot deserves admiration. In
every direction the eye is greeted with a most
extensive and lovely view. The bay is termin-
ated only by the Long Island shore. Throg-
morton’s Neck is also distinctly visible, with
Schuvler’s Fort and Light-housc.

In the rear is to be seen East Chester Creek
winding away further inland. The village of
East Chester, and the high grounds of West
Chester terminate the view.

b3
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NEew RocHELLE contains a population of about
two thousand souls.

THE SOUND SCENERY.

After this sketch of the history of NeEw Ro-
CHELLE, 8 bricf view of the Sound will naturally
be expected.

These noble waters, swelling as they approach
the mighty Atlantic, and bearing on their
craft of everv size, are well known and j
celebrated for thcir romauntic beauty. In
vicinity of NEw RocuriLe these waters
amid numerous Islands clothed in verdure,
give a striking feature to this enchanting
Here the eye can commmand every variety
boundless prospect. Thc waters occasio
sweep up into some creek, and enliven the sce
ry, or stretch over to the opposite shore and
come engulphed amidst the wooded hills of He
stead Harbour, while the broad silver channel
the Sound looks like a mirror, and glides on i
its course, to the swelling waves of the Atlantie]
bearing on its bosom the swift steamer, or
country sloop. The verdant shore of l.ong
land forms another charming addition to
landscape, sprinkled as it is, in all directions,
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neat farm houses and the distant villages of Glen
Cove. or Oyster Bay.

But vessels of darker craft once dauced its sur-
face: these waters having been the favourite re-
cruiting grouunds of the notorious pirate, Captain
Kidd. As early as the vear 1694, when Colonel
Fletcher administered the government of this
State, the Sound was occupied by crews of the
most lawless and desperate pirates, whose first
maxim appears to have been ¢ no prey no pay.”
The despcradoes flinched at nothing, and, like
the western Bucaneers, swept all before them. It
is almost certain, on good evidence, that Colonel
Fletcher himself sanctioned these robbers of the
high seas. although his friend= have cudeavoured
vindicate his character from the foul stain of
ncouraging piracy within his own territories.
t the pirates were some of his own subjects,
sailed from New-York is, however, pretty
lear. These capricious rogues, thus acquainted
ith their own waters, navigated their swift sail
ith perfect security. Kidd himself (one of these
bers.) had the audacity to propose to the gavern-
ent, when he visited England in 1695, the
tting out of a frigate, with a full compliment of
en, to cruise against his brother pirates in the
nd, and as he was well acquainted with their

unts, he suggested the policy of their employing
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him to apprehend them. The result was that
Robert Livingston, and three or four noblemen,
with the King of England at their head, furnished
Capt. Kidd with a frizate of 30 guns and 150
men. Kidd sailed from Plymouth, in England,
1696, turned pirate himself, aud made the best
of his time in a sweeping voyage of piracy, both
in the Mediterranean and also ou these shores,
where by his cruel extortions he compelled the
farmers to yield a levied supply of provisions.

How Kidd so successfully succeeded in bribing
so large a crew is a mystery, and can only be
accounted for by supposing that they were them-
selves equal to their master in the art of plun-
dering.

If a person refused to comply with these re-
morseless exactions, a voyage in the pirate ship
soon settled matters.

The grand priuciple of these hardened rogues
was one absolutely needful to their existence,
(having the fear of the gallows before their eyes,)
and this was mutual fidelity.

To this circumstance we owe the treasures that
are said to exist still among the sande on ow
shores.

Here lie riches which, it is believed, none bt
the pirates had a clue to; and there they
remain, for the pirates have long since crack
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their necks on the gallows, some at Boston, Kidd
himself in London.

For mauy years after the death of Kidd, many
were so infatuated with a notion that the pirates
buried great quantities of money along the coast,
that there is scarce a poiut ot land, or an island,
without the marks of their Auri Sacra Fames.
Some credulous people have ruined themselves
with these researches, and propagated a thousand
idle fables, many of which are current to this
day.*

On the opposite shore of Long Island is a
small jutting promontory, which runs into the
entrance of Hempstead Bay, called to this day
Kidd’s Rock.

RIDES IN THE VICINITY OF NEW ROCHELLE.

The towns and villages, in all directions around
New RocHELLE, are rural and neat.

The roads, in the Summer scason, are gener-
ally in excellent order, and the objects to which
they lead are, for many miles, so delightfully
varied that they cannot fail to please.

We shall first direct our readers to the Pelbam
and West Chester road to New York ; but as this

© B¢ Sinith'« Hel. N. Y., English odit., p. 5
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needs bhardly any description, most persons being
well acquainted with this pleasing and delightful
route, we shall proceed to notice the road to
WHiTE PLaiNs.  This road, as a ride, possesses
all the charmiug diversity which a hilly and finely
wooded country can possibly bestow.  After cross-
ing the old Boston road, to the north of the town,
that formerly led to King’s Bridge, and leaving
the Younker's road to the left, within a mile and a
half of the town, vou pass on the right, the monu-
ment and farm of the notorious Tom Paine,
This distinguished Infidel deserves a passing
notice. He was the son of a Quaker, a stay-
maker by trade, and was born at Thetford, in
Norfolk, England, in 1737. His mother was
the daughter of an attorney, herself a member of
the Church of England. In her religious princi-
ples the son appears to have been educated, for we
find he was confirmed, at the usual age, by the
Bishop of Norwich.

After leaving school, at the early age of thirteen,
Paine embraced his father’s trade as a staymaker,
in which he continued five years. He next ven-
tured on a seafaring life.

In 1759, he again established himself in stay-
making, and married his first wife, Mary Lam-
bert, who died the next year, in consequence of
his bad treatment of her.
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Two years after this he obtained a place iu the
excise, from which he was twice expelled for mal-
practices. In 1771 he married his secound wife,
Eliz. Ollive, from whom in three vears he obtained
a divorce. In 1774 he composed his first pro-
duction, an election soug. for which he obtained
three guineas. The great Franklin found hima
garret writer in Loudon, and was the first person
who advised him to come to thiz country. In
Philadelphia, under the auspices of such men as
Rush, Fraunklin, and others, he prepared and pub-
lished his ¢« Common Sense,”” a work which
appears to have been well timed, and calculated
to rouse the enthusiasm of the brave asserters of
Independence. As a work of merit, it was well
suited to the times in which it wax first published;
but, a< his own biographer remarks, «it is defec-
tive in arrangement, inelegant in diction, with a
few exceptions showing little profundity of argu-
ment, no facility of remark, no extent of research,
and no classical allusion, and cannot be appealed
to as authority or government.” It owedits popu-
larity entirely to the critical juncture of the times.

He afterwards published his «Crisis.”” In
1777 he was elected Secretary to the Committee
of Foreign Affairs, from which office he was dis-
missed, two years after, for a scandalous breach
of office, and this was done by the assembled



3V
wisdom of the States. New York liberally gave
him the confiscated estate of Frederick Davoe, a
royalist. This farm counsisted, at that time, of
100 acres, with a house.

In 1787 he formed the design of producing a
revolution in Eugland. his native country. At
this time the intidels of Frauce were ripeniug
their plots in Paris: Paine joined with them, and
viewed with rapture, the rising revolution in Eng-
land. His iufidel and revolutionary principles
were opposed by the powerful and cloquent Burke,
who, with other noble minded coadjutors, crushed
the revolution in that couutry, and sentenced the
malicious iufidel Paine as an outlaw.

To promote the “revolution of the world,*” he
published his ¢ Age of Reason,” well entitled a
complete piece of ribaldry.

Paiue’s oniy originality was, that while planning
war and bloodshed on earth, he was endeavouring
to raise rebellions against that religion which he
affected to despise.

With him, ruin only appeared complete, when
every good government aud religion itself were
annihilated.

As a companion of the blood-thirsty Robes-
pierre, we find him next sitting on the trial of
the innocent Louis.

* This was » teast Paing hinwelf proposed at # puldic merting in London
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The perjured and outlawed Paine, at this time,
had a parrow escape of his life while in the dun-
geons of Paris; he attributes his escape of the
guillotine to a fever with which he was affected.

While in Paris his medical attendant describes
his body as in a state of putrefaction, owing to the
use of strong drink.

This habit scems to have taken hold of him at
an early period of the French revolution. Even
while residing uuder the roof of Mr. Monroe,
then the United States’ ammbassador at Paris, he
was noted as an immoderate drinker.

During Paine’s imprisonment, the atrocious
Robespierre died by the gullotine.

In 1796, while still in Paris, he published his
letter to GGeneral Washington, which contained a
causcless, ungrateful, virulent aud useless attack
on one of the best of men.

Paine again being imprisoned and expelled
from the society of his fellow infidels. now deemed
it expedient to fly to America, taking under his
charge a married lady named Madame Bouneville,
and her three souns: for some time they remained
on the farm in New Rochelle, but Paige never
remained long in one spot, for we now find him in
New-York, renting his farm, and again in the
country quarelling with his tenant.

The house in which he lived is now destroyed,



32

Here he bad a small room to himself, the furni

of which consisted of a miserable straw bed,
table, a chair, BiBLE, and jug of spiritous liquor.
His breakfast table is described thus by an eyl
witness, Mr. Carver: ¢ the table cloth was com
posed of newspapers; on it was a teapot, 50
coarse brown sugar, part of a rye loaf, and quam
of a pound of butter.”

He appears to have kept, for help, an old black
woman by the name of Betty, who appears to hawe
been as great a drunkard as her master. Paine i
said to have accused her of stealing his rum, ax
Betty would then call him a drunkard.

In a drunken rencontre Paine and Betty have
been seen on the floor togcther, and sprawling
swearing, and threatening to fight, while neithe
the one nor the other had the power to rise.

On Christmas eve, 1804, Painc had a narrow e
cape of hislife. It seems that Derick, an old tes
ant of Paine’s, had rented his farm for a certa:
period, during a part of which time he had hus
ed its produce with care and econmomy;
Paine suddenly returned from N. York, quarrelle
with and discharged him. Derick now determi
ed on revenge ; and accordingly, while Paine
sitting near the window of his room having
lighted candle by his side, Derick ap he
stealthily, and fired the contents of a loaded m«
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et at him, fortunately for Paine, the load fell
armless between the walls.
In 1809 Paine was seized with a mortal sick-
ness while boarding at Mr. Ryder’s in New-York.
From thence he was removed to Mr. Holbron’s,
n Columbia Street. Here it was that, within a
ew weeks of the grave, racked by disease and
pain, we find him denying his own language in
e ¢ Rights of Man”* where he remarks, It may,
perhaps, be said, that it signifies nothiug to a man
at is done with him after he, is dead,” &c. No
nan, however, could be more solicitous than Paine
the disposition of his body. Dr. Maaly, his
pwn physician, has declared that Paine would cry
t frequently, < Oh Lorp, help me;” ¢«“Jesus
HRIST, help me ;”’ and such was his fear of death,
hat he could not bear to be left alone for a single
noment ; and if it so happened, he would scream
nd hollow till some one came.t
So much for the author of the « Age of Reason,”
se boasted philosophy availed him nothing in
is extremity. Alas for the consistency of the man
ho endeavoured to prove before the Theophilan-
hropist’s Society oi Paris the existence of a
erior being to Him whom all Christendom
alls Gop ; the gracious Being who created bim

* See Rights of Man. Part{..p. 53
+ Abridged from Cheetham’s Life of Paine.
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and whom he now calls on for help in his last
moments. On the §th of June 1849, this drunken,
outlawed, and perjured apostle of infidelity breath-
ed his last, aged 72 years and 5 months. His
body was buricd on his farm : here. however,
was not allowed to rest long; for one of his be
loved disciples, Cobbett, disinterred the body s
few vears after, and from the last accounts, i
would appear that at Cobbett’s death, his execute
« found nothing to act upon as the administre
of his effects but a box of bones.”

Coutinuing on the route to White Plains, y
pass through upper New Rochelle, and leaving
another cro=s road to vour left, which leads it
the mail road from New-York to White Plain
you ascend a small hill. where a fine prospect ¢
the sound, and New Rochelle in the distance, i
beforc the view. A mile further on, you ente
the beautiful district of Scarsdale which brings
on to the New-York mail route to White Plaias.

Here the views are finely diversified with bi
and dale. commanding, occasionally, magnifice
peeps of the dark sides of the lofty paliss
I faci, naiure scems to have been lavish with
her romantic beauties throughout this picturesqe
portion of West Chester County. Woods, me
dows, and running streams are mingled in ¢
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nappiest manner, and softened by some of her
finest touches.

The whole line of this road is also ornamented
with neat seats aund farm houses.

To the left of this road, within a few miles of
White Plains, is the mansion of Major Popham,
beautifully situated in a picturesque hollow.

As you approach the town of White Plains
you also pass to the left Chatterton Hcights, the
battle field of 1776.

Returning from White Plains, the ride can be
diversified by taking the Tucahoe road and fol-
lowing the course of the Bronx to East Chester,
or by that to Mamarouneck.

The ride to Mamaroneck, Rye, and Portches-
ler, is the next excursion which we ~...il point out.

This road runs nearly parallel with the course
of the Sound. To the left, about two miles from
New RocHELLE, is the well built mansion of the
late Peter Jay Munro, Esq., which commands a
very fine prospect of the Sound and the country
around. Two miles further on you arrive at the
lown of Mamaroneck, which is very much en-
livened by an extensive salt water view. Pursu-
ing the main road you pass, on the right, the resi-

nce of Peter A. Jay, Esq. This house also

mmands extensive views of the Sound, sprin-
in the foreground. with srouns of pictiresnue
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islands. You now approach the summit of a
slight hill ; here a beautiful prospect opens before
the eye. Directly in front, and situated in avale,
lics the town of Rye. To the left, a fine winding
creek stretches iuto the Sound. To the right,
interspersed with woods and pastures, numerous
well built farm houses appear in all directions.
The town of Rye itself is enlivened with a beau-
tiful fresh water stream, which runs through some
swmall but beautif:] pastures.

Continuing the route a mile or two further, youen-
ter the town of Portchester. This place has grown
rapidly within a few years, and is likely to rival
any on the coast. Another route, which is equally
pleasant, may be followed on returning to Rye,
by taking the first road to the left, which runs by
the new Presbyterian Chapel. This roed pessing
near the banks of the Sound possesses views of
great beauty : it ultimately joins the main Boston
road.

The road to Yonkers passes through a beauti-
ful portion of the county, and will be found amply
to repey the stranger for a morning’s ride.
Leaving N&w RocHeLLE by the White Plains
road, already mentioned, you take the first left
band road ; after crossing the Aqueanouncke, the
small stream that divides the townships of Pelham
and East Chester, the next left band road brings
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you into the stage route from New-York to White
Plains ; continuing forward, vou again take the
left band road called the Yonkers’ road. After
passing the romantic mill of Lawrence Under-
hill, situated on the river Bronx, the road turns to
the right, and again, afier a short distance, to the
left ; here it winds through wooded hills and neat
farms, till you reach a lovely stream called the
Saw Mill. Following its bauks the road runs
direct to Yonkers. The extensive range of well
wooded hills, orchards and farm houses, together
with the meanderings of the Saw Mill on this line
of road, will entitle it to the claim that it holds
among all lovers of natural scenery, to be consid-
ered as one possessing unrivalled charms.

From the heights above the town of Yonkers,
a splendid view is commanded of the bold and
rocky palisades, together with the noble Hudson
stretching out till it becomes terminated in the
distance by Jersey City.

From Yonkers the ride can be diversified by
returning through the arch of the Aqueduct, and
pursuing the cecond sizht hand road. This crosses
the Croton Water Works, and affords, as you
approach East Chester from Valentine’s Hill, ex-
tensive views of the Sound, Long Island, and the
surrounding country. On entering East Chester,
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opposite the Church, you find yourself again in
the White Plains road.

The beauty of the ride from NEw RocHELLE to
Tarrytown is also well deserving of notice, and
will be found not to disappoint the greatest expec-
tations that can be raised by the most sanguine
lovers of river scenery.

We shall not attempt any description of this
road, but merely say, that both at Tarrytown and
Youkers good accomnmodatious may be obtained
for parties at the hotels. We mention this, as the
excursion to both thesc places is longer than any
we have before mentioned.

The ride to the Premium Mills will also be
found well worth an hour’s excursion to the East
of the town of NEw RocHELLE.

TOWNS IN THE NEIGHBOURHOOD.

We shall now proceed to a description of the
vicinity of NEw RocHELLE; and as Pelham once
embraced this township, we shall first notice it.

PELHAM.

This township is situated to the south-east of
Niw Rocuriie. A smull stream called by the
Indians, the Aqueanouncke, and by the English,
Hutchinson’s River, separates it from East Ches-
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ter. It appears to have been purchased from the
Indians, sometime previous to the year 1666, by
Thomas Pell, and by him called Pelham; an
old English name composed of Pel (remote) and
Ham (mausion.)

By Governor Nichols it was granted and con-
firmed, in 1666, to Thomas Pell, Esq., of Fair-
field, in Counnecticut, together with the islands
adjacent, aud all its privileges, and erected into
an enfranchised township or manor, and secured
to him and his heirs.*

The Pells are of English origin, and a family
of very old standing in the counties of Norfolk
and Lincolnshire in that country.

Thomas Pell, Esq., commonly known as my
Lord Pell, the first proprietor of this township,
appears to have been an adherent of the popular
party during that great struggl -, called the civil
wars in England, between the Parlimentarians on
one side, and the crown and heirarchy on the
other. Afler the restoration of the mounarchy, in

1660, he fled from the vengeance of the royalists
into France. He afterwards removed to Qucka-

way, or Fairfield. in Connecticut, and from theuce
settled here, where he purchased of the Indians
their right to this soil. After his death, which

* Mo~ Appendiz. A.
[
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happened about 1680, the manorial proprietorship
descended to John Pell, his nephew, son of the
famous Dr. Pell, the celebrated A mbassador of
Oliver Cromwell to the Swiss Cautons.* In 1691
we find this iudividual on the list of members,
returned bv the Sheriff, to represent the county of
West Chester.T

Since the revolution, the manor has been sold
in various proportions to different individuals.

The first object of interest as you enter Pelham,
after leaving New RocHELLE, is the « Priory,”
the residence of the Rev. Robert Bolton. The
house, which is constructed of stone, is a mixture
of the Gothic and costellated styles, and accords
well with its romantic and elevated situation.
The views from its towers and terraces, and old
fashioned bay windows, are charming. the land-
scape being finely enriched in the foreground
with a rocky declivity, covered with the indigen-
ous cedar, beyond which stretches a beautiful bay
interspersed with rocky and wooded islands, and
terminated with the shores of Long Island. The
grounds are intersected by naturally wooded walks,
leading to various poinis of interest,among which
deserves to be noticed ¢ the Rocking Stone.”
This natural curiosity is a mass of solid rock,

* See Vaughan's Protectorate of Cromweli.
t Soo Smith's Hist. of N. Y., p. 2.
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weighing, perhaps, more than twenty tons, whica
can be moved to and fro, at pleasure, by a child.

As you advance on the New-York road, through
Pelham, fine water views burst open to your
gaze.

After leaving Mr. Bolton’s, to the left is the
residence of Albert Rosevelt, Esq. The house
commands a fine view of the opposite shore of
Long Island, and the intermmediate Sound. The
winding creek now opens close to the road side,
and you see before you the wouds of Huuter’s
Island. A stone causcway, and Leat bridge
erected across the passage of the creek, leads you
past a well built lodge to the house, which stands
in the centre of the island, and almost encircled
by its woods. Here the most extensive views of
the Sound mecect the eve. To the north-east of
the house, looking up the Sound, the waters stretch
out into a boundless expanse; to the south-west,
a fine open bay extends towards the neck in Pel-
ham and Throgmortou’s Poiut; while in frout,
fine sweeping meadows skirted by tall woods,
bounded by islands, and enlivened by the waters
and Long Island, are its principal attractions, and
unite to render it one of the most beautiful spots
on the river.

John Huuter, Esq., its present proprietor, has
for some years represented the county in the State
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Scnate, and is, ex-officio, a member of the Court
of Errors.

The house, which is built of stone, is in the
Grecian style. You enter, under a colonnade of
the Ionic order, the hall, which contaius some
choice hunting pieces of Suvder’s, The draw-
ing room, diniug room, and parlour, are also
embellished with some excelleut paintings of the
firsst masters, constituting altogether one of the
best private collections iu this country. Near the
house are fine gardens, adorned with hot houses,
containing a choice collection of the Cactus
tribe.

The adjoining property is that of Isaac Coles,
Esq., also beautifully situated near the water, and
commanding every variety of fine scenery. But
the most to be admired in this situation, is the
good taste with which art has added her charms
to those of nature, the grounds being tastefully laid
out to the water’s edge, and embellished with ex-
tensive green and fruit houses.

In the immediate vicinity is the estate of Robert
Bartow, Esq. This gentleman’s family have en-
Joyed this property for some years. One of the
first members of this family was the Rev. Mr.
Bartow, a clergyman of some distinction, sent
out here from England, in 1702, by the « Propa-
gation Society.” The present proprietor has
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lately erected a tine stone house, in the Grecian
style, which presents a neat front with projecting
wings.

Following the mail road to New-York, Pelham
continues to the left, on towards the neck called
by the Indiaus, Aunhook’s Neck, by the English,
Pell’'s Pont.

To the right, leading on to this neck, is the
residence of Richard Morris, Lsq., beautifully
situated on a gentle eminence, and command-
ing fine water views of the Sound and adjacent
creeks.

To the left, on entering the neck, lies the
¢ Indian Burving Ground,” already alluded to in
our description of the Indians. lu fact the whole
of this neck appears to have been used by them
as a burial ground.

It is said that the tribe even brought their dead
from great distances, to inter them on this favour-
ite spot,

In proof of this, bodies have been found on
every portion of the neck. The largest propor-
tion of mounds are «ituated. however, on the
grounds of the late George Rapalve, Esq..a mem-
ber of a family of French descent, who settled in
King’s county, Long Island, in the vear 1625.
The property is now occupied by Peter Brinker-
boff, Esq. The house, which is built of wood, is
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beautifully situated, and embraces many exten-
sive and rich views of scenery on the Sound. It
also contains a small but choice collection of
paintings. A little turther south, is the residence
of the late Eli~ha King, Fsq. This house is built
of stone, in the Grecian style, and presents a fine
columned front to the water.  Here the beauty of
the scenery is heightened by the close vicinity of
City Island, and the beautiful and extensive
variety of the choicest trees and shrubs, which
afford a striking addition to the grounds.

The neck is terminated by the farm of Mr.
Valentine, which appears to connect itself with
City Island.

Pelham Creck Bridge having been already
noticed, we shall returu to the road leading to
East Chester. Pelham now continues on to the
north-west, following the course of the creek.
After leaving the late residence of Lyon,
Esxq., the present Sheritl’ for the county, on the
right, to the left a fiue view of the higher grounds
of East Chester is obtained, together with the
winding creek or river, the village of Fast Chester
acd its picluresque stone Church.  Immediately
below the hill, on the verge of the creck, buried
amorg willows and shrubbery, is the house of the
late Major Gcorge Prevost, whose family was
originally from Geneva, in Swilzerland, and de-
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scended from Major General George Provost, of
that country.

Mr. Stephen Pell’s residence and store, com-
plete the Parish bounds.

To the west, crossing the main road to West
Farms, Pelham again enters the old King’s Bridge
road. Here the salt and fresh waters of the
Aqueanouncke mingle; to the left is the highly
improved residence and property of Hayes,
Esq. The house stands on a geutle rise, and
overlooks the winding creek and distant village.

Pelham still runs northward, till it is terminated
by New RocHELLE and Scarsdale.

The population of this town is computed at 784.

WEST CHESTER.

This town is situated on the main New-York
and Boston road, at the south-west extremity of
West Chester county, on the East River, 12 miles
from the city of New-York, and at the head of
Davigation, on the West Chester creek. Throg’s
Neck, at the S. E. extremity, is connected with
the main bv a narrow causewav. This neck
originally took its name from Throgmorton, an
Englishman,* who took a grant for it, under the
Dutch, in 1643. The name abreviated since

* The Throgmarion's are a family of ancient standing ia Eaglaad, and

derive their descent from John d¢ Throckmorton, Lond of Threckmerton
i 1100.
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from Throgmorton to Throg’s, and vulgarly cor-
rupted into Frog’s Neck.®

It eventually became the property of A. Ham-
mond, Esq., whose son lately =old the point to
the United States goverunment, upon which they
have erected the present Fort Schuvler.

This neck is justly celebrated for its beauty,
commanding, as it does, extensive and pictur
esque views of the Souund, and adjacent country.

It contains also, many beautiful country seats.

Here it was that, on October the 12th, 1776,
General Howe landed his troops, after passing
through Hurl Gate.

West Chester was formerly a borough town,
under a charter of incorporation of King William
the 1I1., of England, which consisted of a mayor,
two alderinen, and recorder.

It had also the power of sending a member to
the Legislature.

This town also embraces West Farms, Mor-
rissania, and Fordham.

The Church, which stands to the south-west of
the town, is built of wood. and surmounted by a
cupola.

A Church was erected here as early as 1702, in
pursuance of an act for building five Churches in

* S¢0 Egbort Bensen's Memez of Stateo N. Y..p. T8
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the county. The first rector of this Parish was
the Rev. Mr. Bartow, a very active and zealous
churchman, who had also the superintendence of
the Parishes of East Chester aud Youkers, but
whose principal residence was at this place.

The late Dr. Wilkius was, for some vears, also
rector of this Parish, His grandson is the present
Governcur M. Wilkins, Esq.. of Castle Hill.*

The present incumbent is the Rev. W. Powell.

This Parish, in 17(2, coutained a population
of 2000 souls : it now embraces 4154.

WEST FARMES,

Which is pleasantly situated at the head of naviga-
tion, on Bronx’s creek. three miles from the river,
and twelve from New-York. This place, from
its vicinity to the city, is rapidly increasing.
Besides containing many beautiful country seats
in the neighbourhood, the town has a post office,
and several extensive manufactories.t There is
no Episcopal Church here, but Chapels belonging
to the Presbvtcrians and Dutch Lutherans.

Weat Farme, in 1813, contaired 2 population
of between 3 and 400 inhabitauts.

® This family are of ancient standing in the north of England, being de-
seonded from Robert de Wintona. or Wincestria, temp. of Wilkiam 11.

* The bowse of Philip M. Lydiz, Eaq, situated on the margin of the
Preax, was the head quarters of the illustrious Washiagten.
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MORRISSANIA,

Is the well known country residence of the late
Hon. Governeur Morris, aud is highly spoken of
by travellers, and other persous of taste.  Its situa-
tion is very fine. just in the south-west angle of
the towuship of West Chester. ncarly opposite to
the beautiful scenery of Hurl Gate, cight miles
from New-York, and eommanding extensive
views of the surrounding couutry, aud the adja-
cent waters. This place was originally settled by
Colonel Morris, an ofiicer of Oliver Cromwell’s
army, who, after the restoration in 1660, disguised
himself under the profession of Quakerism, came
out to this country, and bought this extensive pro-
perty, which he called after his own name Morris-
sania.*

His nephew, Colenel Morris, was a man of
extensive influence. a member of the council in
the Province of New Jersv. aud a judge of the
Supreme Court there in 1692.

This distingnished individual was also nomin-
ated Governor of this state, in 1702, in opposi-
tion to Lord Cornbury.t

The late proprietor, Governeur Morris, was a

* The Morris's are a family of Welsh origin, and desceaded from the
powerful British Chieflain Elyatar GLODRYDD. bora in 532
* This individual uitimately obtained it. being Queen Aane’s nephow.
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distinguished statesman and orator, and minister
from the United States to France, in 1792.

In 1775, he was a delegate to the Provincial
Congress, from New-York, and was emploved in
the public service, in various capacities, during
the revolutionary coutest, in the execution of
which he appears to have displayed great zeal and
ability.* Afier the war of the revolution, he re-
tired to this spot, where he cnjoyed the society of
his illustrious compeers, who took part in that
memorable struggle. Louis Philipe, and the
celebrated Moreau, were also inmates of his hos-
pitable mansion.

Governcur Morris was likewise an active mem-
ber of the Convention, who formed the present
Constitution of the United States.

This illustrious and accomplished statesman,
died in 1816, aged 64.

His son is the present Governeur Morris, Esq.

The Church is a chaste Gothic edifice of marble
dedicated to St. Ann. It was erected and en-
dowed at the expense of Mr. Morris, and coutains
a well arranged chancel, and a chaste memorial
of marble dedicated to the memory of the late Mrs.
Morris, a lenial representative of the illustrious
Pocahontas, of Virginia.

* Biake's Biographical Dictionary.
* See Sparke’s Life of Merris.
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The Church has been incorporated, and piaced
in the hands of the Bishop of the Diocese.
Morrissania was incorporated into West Ches-
ter in the year 1791.

FORDHAM,

Now embraced in West Chester township, was
formerly known as the Mauor of Fordbam. It
contaius a small village bordering on the New-
York and Albany Rail Road.

The Roman Catholics have here a large Semin-
ary, once the private residence of the celcbrated
Motte.

The whole institution is on an extensive scale,
beautifully located, and under the superintend-
ence of Bishop Hughes.

There is also a large Episcopal Boy’s School,
on the old De Laucey property, conducted by the
Rev. W. Powell, rector of West Chester Church.

The heights of Fordham are well known in the
annals of the revolution. It was to these hills
that General Howe retired from White Plains, and
encamped his army for the object of reducing
Fort Washington. These hills are also celebrated
for their extensive and commanding views of the
surrounding country.

YONKERS.

This town is beautifully situated on the banks
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of the Hudson, and the magnificent views which
open themselves on all sides, unite in rendering
it one of the finest towns in this interesting por-
tion of West Chester County.

It is 2 miles north of New York, 10 8. W,
of White Plains, and about the same distance
from New RocuELLE.

This town was originally granted in 1648 to
Jonker Vander Douck, familiarly called Jouker,
from Jouge Heer, the youug lord, the Dutch ap-
pellation for the heir of the family.* We find
this land called in the Colonial records, the Yonk-
er's Land. Vander Donck also made other pur-
chases of the Indians, in this neighbourhood,
erected mills, and laid out a plantation on the site
of the present town of Yonkers. In 1658, Fred-
erick Philips, the founder of the ancient family of
the Philipses,t iinmigrated to this country, baving
left his native land, East Frieesland, with the con-
sent of the Stadtholder and the States General, to
take possession of a large purchase of land he had
made in the province of New-York. This pur-
chase conwined the present town of Yonkers,
which he called, after his own name, Philipsburg,
together with another large tract called, bv way of

* See Judge Benson’s Memoir of N. Y.

* This ancient family of Philipses camc originelly from Bohessia, bav-
ing fled thewce on the persecutions that srove m the timew of Jobn Huss,
and Jerome of Pragee. Cooper calls thom ‘‘ the Bohemian Philipers.
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distinction, the Upper Patent. This he named
Fredericksburg.

He left one son, Frederick, who was born in
Hollaud in 1656.

His great grandson was Frederick Philips, the
direct ancestor of the present Euglish Philips,
and also of' Philip Philips. who, taking no active
part iu the revolution, secured a full share of the
property at Philipsburg, where his descendants
still reside. Their sister Mary married Colouel
Roger Morris, a staunch royalist, who, after the
war, retired to England, where she lived to the
advanced age of 96.

Before her marriage with Colonel Morris, she
had refused the hand of General Washington, who
appears to have been greatly attached to her.

It was also from her character that Cooper
founded the heroine of the « Spy,” under the name
of Frances. An interesting account is also given
of her interview with Washingtou, in the same
work.*

There are many well known spots, connected
with reyvolitionary hictarv, in thia town, such as
Boar Hill and Valentine’s Hill.

The road to Albany, from this place, is well
deserving of notice. It extends aloug the banks

® The Spy : vide Preface to the *“ Water Witch.”
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of the Hudson, and commands fine views of the
maguificent scenery of the opposite shores,
sprinkled with distant villages aud country seats.

This uoble river carries a tide of 170 miles
from the city of New-York, and opeus a naviga-
tion far into the western region of lakes.

Doth Tagus o’er his goiden pavement glowing,

Or cradic-freighied Ganges. the approach of Mothers,
‘The storicd RKhme: or far-famed Guadaiquiver—
Match they in beauty thus great and glunous niver?

C. F. Horrean.

In the immediate neighbourhood of Yonkers is
the Manor of Courtlaudt, named after the Van
Courtlandts, one of the noblest Dutch families who
first settled the New Netherlands, their ances-
tors being originally sovereign Lords of Court-
land, before their immigration to Holland.

The first proprietor of this manor was the
Right Hon. Oliver Stephen Van Courtlandt, a
privy councillor, who accompanied in 1629, (as
Secretary to the Government,) the first Dutch
Governor, sent out by the States General of
Holland, to this colony.

As a compensation for large suma of maoney,
advanced to the governnent of Holland, he ob-
tained a grant of the Manor of Courtlandt, and
the lower part of Yonkers, which property is now
in possession of his descendant, Courtlandt Van
Courtlandt, Esq.
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The Church of Philipsburg is delightfully situ-
ated in the centre of the town, near the banks of
the Hudson. It is built of brick and stone, and
has been of late much improved. This Church
was originally founded by the services »f the Rev.
Mr. Bartow, of West Chester, who established a
congregation here in 17¢3.

There is also a Chapel of Ease attached to this
Parish, at Tucahoe.

The preseat rector is the Rev. Henry L. Storrs.

Yonkers contains a population of 2,968 souls ;
in 1810, it numbered 1,365 ; in 1704, 239.

WHITE PLAINS,

Is delightfully situated, in a fine plain, close by
the Bronx’s River. It is the half-shire town of
West Chester county, 28 miles from New-York,
6 miles east of the Hudson, and 9 from New Ro-
cHELLE. It contains a fine old court house, pri-
son, and a handsome collection of well built
houses. To the south of the town, the surface of
the country is broken by a range of hills; but
they only diversifv. with a pleacing variety of soil
and position, and the lands are duly distributed
into portions for meadow, pasture, and tillage.
The historic events connected with the name of
White Plains, will long live in the pages of
American history; and the autumn of 1776 was
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made memorable by a batle on these Plains,
October 28th, as well as by a series of disasters
of the most portentous import. *

The battle field lies to the south-west of the
village. Nothing remaius, however, to mark the
spot, rendered interesting by the eutrenchments
of the patriots, but a small portion of the em-
bankmeut, on the surface of which rests a muti-
lated spiked mortar, branded by the brush and
white lead of the paiuter with *76 ; in addition to
which modern economy has supplied this relic of
the revolution with a lowly square stand.

The head-quarters of the patriotic Washington,
while stationed here, was at a small farin house to
the west of the village, situated amid a deep soli-
tude of woods, surrounded by hills and wild ro-
mauntic acenery.

This house is still standing, and was occu-
picd, in 1838, by a veteran of 1776. Here is
shown the table that supported the camp fare of
Washingtou, Lee, and McDougal. The heights
around command the most exteusive and diver-
sified scenery, from the lizht bluc hills beyond
the Hudson, to the broad and distant Sound.

One of these hills in particular, is still marked
with the rude embankment of the patriot, from

whence, like an eagle, he must bave surveyed

* Stafford's Gazetiowr of N. Y.
d
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fromm his mountain homne the motions of the
enemy. This height surpasses, in the variety of
beautiful landscape scenerv, any thing in West
Chester county.

In this ncighbourhood is situated the country
resideuce of Major Popham, oue of the few sur-
viving aid-de-camps ol’ General Washington, and
a descendant of the ancicut and honourable family
of the Pophams, of Eugland aud Ireland. The
property is extensive, aud beautifully situated on
the margin of the Bronx, which supplies a mill
seat on the farm.

The Church in White Plains is a neat struc-
ture of wood, to which considerable additions have
been lately made. It is delightfully situated, near
the entrance of the town, and possesses a large
parsonage house.

Its present worthy incumbent is the Rev. R.
W. Harris, A. M, son of the late Dr. Harris, of
Columbia College.

Mr. Harris has, for eight years past, conducted
a Select Boy’s School for English, Classical, and
Religions Education; his chief object being to
serve the Church, by training a few of its youth
in the old paths of filial obedience, patient indus-
try, and Christian devotion.

The Presbyterians, and Methodists, have also
places of worship.
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White Plaius contains a population of 1,087
souls.

MAMARONECK.

The situation of this town is very pleasant, being
at the head of a fine bay which forms a harbour
for vessels of 100 tous. This place promises
considerabie increase of population and busi-
ness, being well situated for mills and faciories.
There is already an extensive cottou factory, built
of brick. At the eutrance of this town, is a
fine property, formnerly belouging to Colonel
Heathcote, {desceuded of the Heathcote’s, of
Normaaton, iu the county of Rutland,) who settied
here in 1647. Tu this Parish is also situated the
property of the late Peter Jay Munro, Esq. The
house is a large building of wood, finely seated
on rising ground, and commanding extensive
views of the Souund.

The view of the building is coucealed from the
road, by a fine plantation of fir, which adds much
to the beauty of the grounds. Here is a valuable
collection of Stewart’s Paintings: in particular a
fuli lenglh of the iilusirious “’ashingiuu deserves
to be noticed, and oue of Governor Jay.

The farm and residence of Alderman William
Scott is the adjoining propesty, and is delightfully
situnted with regaid to water scenery.

s
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De Lancey Neck is also in this Parish, the
property of the late Colonel de Lancey, whose
family were distinguished members of the State.
The first of the family, who settled in this
country, was Mr. de Lancey, a Protestant refu-
gee, a native of Caen, in Normandy, who married
a daughter of Mr. Van Courtlandt. The Neck
is still owned by his descendant, the Right Rev.
W. Heathcote de Lancey, Bishop of the Western
Diocese of this State. The Church is a neat
edifice of wood, to which is attached a parson-
age. The rector is the Rev. John M. Ward.

Mamaroneck embraces a population of 1416
souls.

RYE,
Is a pleasant town, situated near the Long Island
Sound, about 29 miles from New-York, and
nearly 7 from New RocHELLE.

The farms in the vicinity are large and highly
improved, beautifully diversified with graceful un-
dulations and fine woods. To the south-east is
a fine point of land, which stretches out into the
Sound, adding much to the beauty of the scenery.

There is also a celebrated and fine beach,
called the Rve Flats. The country residence of
Peter A. Jay, E<q.. is in this town *

* The present Mr Jay is the th-rd generation that has occupied this
spot. The boyboed of Governor Jay was passed here ; and his romains
are deposited in the family burying gronad sttached te the place
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The mansion is a handsome structure of wood,
with a lofty porticoed front to the road. It is
well located on a gentle rise, and commands ex-
tensive and pleasing views of the Sound, Long
Island, and the surrounding country.

The Church is agreeably situated, on an emi-
neuce, and forms a picturesque object in con-
nection with the scenery around. It was founded
by the Rev. Mr. Muirson, in 1707, who seems to
bave laboured here with extraordiuary success, in
adding many to his communiou.

The late reverend aud venerable Richard Chan-
ning Moore, Bishop of Virginia, was for some
years rector of this Church. Its present indefa.
tigable incumbent is the Rev. Peter 8. Chauncey.

The Rectory stands near the Church, in a beauti-
ful situation, commanding a view of a fresh water
stream and fine meadows.

There are also places of worship belonging to
the Presbyterian and Methodist persuasions.

Rye coutains a population of 1,8(3 souls. In
17C3 the population was computed at §00.

EAS8T CHESTER.

About three miles south-west of New Ro-
CHELLE, and nearer New-York, in a vale, stands
the town of East Chester, pleasanty situated on a

zalt water creek, of the same name, formerly
&
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called Hutchinson’s river. In the south-east an-
gle of the town, this creek enters a fine bay.

The earlier inhabitants of this township appear
to have beeun principally devoted to the raising of
sheep, of which useful animal there must have
been extensive flocks.

It is now a fine farming district, the land being,
although stony, warm and productive.

This towu was distinguished iu our early colo-
nial aunals, for the active part it took in favour of
Governor Leisler, in 1689 ; for we fiud Leisler's
party strengthened on the 3rd of June, 1669, by
the addition of six captainsand 400 men in New-
York, aud a company of 70 men from East
Chester, who bad all subscribed, on that day, a
solemn dcclaration to preserve the Protestant re-
ligion, and the fortof New-York for the Prince of
Orange, and the Governor whom the Prince
might appoint as their protector.*

This part of the country suffered severely dur-
ing the war of the revolution ; it was the scene of
marches, points of defence, skirmishes, and bat-
tles between the two hostile armies.

In October, 1776, a skirmish took place in this
town, between the patriots, on their route from
King’s Bridge to West Chester, and the enemy
under Lord Howe.

* Smith's Hist. of N Y.. Enclich odit.. p. 90.
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This township also embraced the neutral ground,
where the lawless skinners and cow boys practised
their black deeds of rapine unmolested.

The Church is a haudsome aud spacious build-
ing of stoue, surmouuted with a neat cupola.
It was erected previous to the revolution, and
scems to have been used during the war asa
hospital. It served also as a court of justice,
two skinuners having been tried there before a
military tribuual, aud were afterwards hung at
West Chester.

The Rev. Mr. Bartow was the first wminister in
17.3. The iuhabitants of this Parish appear to
have been of the Preshyterian persuasion, until
Mr. Bartow came amoug them; but in the year
17. 3 they embraced the priuciples of the Church
of Englaud. and received him as their pastor.

This zealous man, after labouring 25 years in
the service of the Church, died in 1727. The
Rev. Mr. Standard succeeded him in the duties
of the Parish. This gentleman preseuted the bell
to the Church. on which his name is inscribed.

On the building of the present edifice his re-
mains, and those of his wife, were removed
from the old Church, aud now lay beneath the
chancel.

The Rev. Robert Bolton is the present rector.

The Church Yard is one of the most extensive
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in the county, and contains mauy beautiful marble

monuments.

There are several saw and grist mills in the
Parish, soine of them are beautifully situated on
the Bronx, a finc fresh water stream that separates
this Parish on the west from Yonkers, and so
called from a Dutch plauter namned Brouck.

East Chester is considered a remarkably heal-
thy situatiou, many iustauces having occurred of
persous attaining the advaunced age of 1uu years.

This Parish coutaius a population of 1,5(2
souls.



APPENDIX.

A.
NEw RocHELLE, June 1st, 1743.
DR. BEARCROFT,

Reverend Sir—Our minister, ye bearer hereof, having
communicated to us his letter to you of ye month of Oct.
1742, wherein he exprexsed a desire of revisiting his nea-
tive country. and asked ye Hon'ble Society's leave for that
purpose ; we took that declaration as if he had resolved to
lJeave us altogether and to serve our Church no loanger; and
therefore made bold to address ourseives unto ye Hon'ble
Society for providing us with another. that we might not
remain destitute.

But hearing now from his own mouth that he designs
to go no further than London. and is willing to retum,
with ye Hon'ble Society’s permission. for the service of our
church : we therefore upon this consideration take ye lid-
erty to declare and acquaint you that our said minister,
since his first coming. has constantly resided among us
preaching (as directed by ye Hon’ble Society ) two Sundays
in French and one in English, much to our satisfaction
and edificstion. his doctrine being very sound. and his pro-
nuncistion full. ciear, and intelligible—upon which account
we could have wished, that he had finished his days among
us without interruption. and we expected nothing else;
but as it happens. a strong desire to bear from his relatives
has prevailed with him to take a journey for Europe.
However. seeing he now explains his mind, and promises
to return among us, we beg of the Hon’ble Suciety that
tbey would accordingly be pleased to send him again to us,
by the first and next opportunity. But if contrary to our
expectstion it should fall out otherwise, we repest our
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former petition, and beg leave L0 entreat ye Hon'ble Soci-
ety not to leave us destitute, but to continue to us their
charity in providing us with another in his room, as in
their great wisdom and goodness they shall think fit.

Such is ye prayer of us underwritten members of Nxw

Reverend sir,

Rocuerre Church, who are with great respect,

Ye most obedient humble servants,
And in ye name of all,

JEAN SotLicE,

PEIER BO\NET,

GILLE LIEURE,

PETER SICARD,

JOHN BADEALU,

AMAN GUION,

ISAAC GUCLON. June..
BARNARD RYNLANDER,

PHILIP JAC ‘8 RHINLANDER,

JOSFEPH DINALDSON.
JONAS3 RPOCK.
DANIEL CICART,
ISAAC SICARD,
his
PACL > SICARD,
mark.
JACQUE PUREOT,
ISAAC GUION.
JAINKS OE BLEZ.
MAR=I, NE FUELLE.
JORIAS LE CONTE,
JEAN RICARD,
JAQUES BONNET.
JREAN BONNET,
WILLIAM RIHNLANDER,
JAQCE FLANDREALU,
her

LA VEUVE > JEAN JUIN,

mark.
AXNE PALMER,
MARY ANNE PALMER,
JOHAXN PIETER RITTER,

s
SAMUEL >< BERNARD,

merk.

JEAN ANGEVIN,
JACQUE~ P. SICARD,
ALFDA BOLBT,
PETER BERTAIN,
J'ANNE NE A FUILLE,
ROBEKT LIVINGUSTON,
ABM. BANCKER. Junr,
ABRM. GUIUN,
DANIEL ANGEVIN,

his
TRUSTUM > SOBY,

mark.
CATHERINE ANGETTX,
AMBROISE A SICARD,
DANIEL GIRATD,
DANIEL GIRATD,
JOHN MORE.
his

FREDERICK > SELURMEN,

mark.
MICHAEL CROESNY,
JEAN PARCOT,
JSAAC COUTANT,
JOHN ALLEE.
JOHN FLANDREAU,
ISAAC DAAS,
WHTIAM RODYAY,
JAM. BARTAIN,
JAQUE SICARD,
JOHN CHADEAYNE,
GIDEON FLORANCE,
DANIEL SICARD,
GUILLEAUME LANDRIN,
JANNE BOXNIX,
OLIVER BESLY.
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Copyof the Grant from James, Duke of York, (by) Richard
Nicholls, Governor of Pelham Manor, io Thomas Pell,
1666.

Richard Nicholls, Exq., Governor under His Royal High-
ness the Duke of York, of all his Territories in America,
To all to whom these presents shall come. sendeth greet-
ing : Whereas there i1s a certain Tract of j.and within this
Government upon the Main situate, 1y ing and being to the
eastward of West Chester bounds, bounded to the west-
ward with the river calied by the Indians Agqueanouwncke,
communly hnown by the knglish by the name of Hutch-
inson’s River, which runneth into the Bay lying between
Throgmortoa's Neck snd Ann Hook’s Neck, commonly
called Hutchinson's Bay, bounded on the east by a bruok
called Cedar Tree Brook. or Gravelly Brook. on the south by
the Sound which lieth between Long Island and the main
land. with all the is'ands in the Sound not already granted
or otherwise dispose«d of, lying before that tract of land so
bounded as is before expressed, and northwards to run inte
the woods about eight English miles in breadth as the
bounds to the Sound, which said tract of land hath hereto-
fore been purchased of the Indisn proprietors, and ample
satisfaction given for the same. Now Kxow vE, That by
virtue of the commission and suthority unto me given by
His Royal Highness, Jamer. Duke of Y ork, &c.. upon whom
by lawful grant and patent from His Majesty the proprie-
tory and government of that pest of the main land as well
a8 of Long island as all the islands adjscent. among other
things is settled, 1 have thought proper to give, grant, con-
firm, and ratify, and by these presents do give, grant, con-
firm, snd ratify unto Thomas Pell. of Onckway, alias Fair-
field His Majesty’s colony of Connecticut, gentlemen, his
heirs and asuigns, all the mid tract of land bounded as
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aforesaid, together with all the lands, islands, seabays,
woods. meadows, pastures, marches, lakes, waters, creeks,
fishing. hawking, hunting and fowling, and all other pro-
fits, commodities. emoluments and hereditaments. to the
said tra-t of land and islands belonging with them. and
every of their appurtenances, and of every part and parcel
there~f; and that the seid tract of land and premises shall
he for ever hereafter held, demand. reputed. taken, and be
an enfranchised township, manor, and place iteelf: and
shall always from time :» time, and at all times hereafler,
have, hold. and enjoy. like and equal privilezes and immu-
nities, with any town. enfranchised place, or manor within
this zovernment: and shall in no manner of way be sub-
ordinate or belonginz unto. have any dependancy upon, or
in any wise be under the rules, orders. or directions of any
riding townehip, or township place. or jurisdiction either
upon the Main or upon long Island: but <hall in all
casex, thingx, and matters, be deemed, reputed. taken. and
held a< an ahaolute. entire enfranchised township. manor,
and place of iteelf in thix z.overnment. and shall be ruled,
ordered, and directed in all matters as to government. sc-
cordingly, by the Governor and his Council. and the gen-
ersl Courts of Assizes: only alwave pravided. that the
inhahitante on the said tract of land granted and aforesaid
shall be oMized to send forwards to the next towns all
public packete and letters. or hue and cries coming to this
place or going from it. to any other of Hic Majesty’s Colo-
nies: to have and to hold the said tract of land and grant,
with all and ringular the app irtenances, premises. together
with the privilezes. immunities. franchises. and advantages
herein given and granted unto the sa’d Thomas Pell. his
bheirs and ascigne to the nroner nes and hehnf of the z2id
Thomas Pell for ever. firmly. freely. and clearly. in as large
and ample manner and form. and with such full and abso-
late immunities and privilegzes as bef-re is expressed. as if
be had heid the same immediately from His Majesty the
King of Fngland. &c &c.-&c. &c. &c. his successors ss of
the Manor of East Greenwich, in the County of Kent, in

free and common_soccage, and by fealty, only yielding,
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rendering. and paying yearly and every year, unto His
Royal Highness, the duty for ever, and his heirs, or to
such Governor as shall from time to time be by him con-
stituted and appointed. as an acknowledgment, one lamb,
on the first day of May, (if the lamb shall be demanded.)

Given under my hand and seal, at Fort James. in New
York. on the Island Manhattan, the sixth day of
October, in the 18th year of the reign of our sove-
reign lord, Charies the Secuond. by the grace of God,
of Engtand. Scotland, and Ireland, King, Defender
of the Faith. &c.ykc. kc., and in the vear of our
I.ord God 1666.

fRICHARD NICHOLLS.






WILLIAM LEGGETT.

Associated with Ngw RocHELLE is the name of William
Leggelt. the friend of liberty and truth.®

For some years Mr. Legrett was the able conductor of
the « Fvening Post.” an office hie was compelled to resign
in 1835, on account of ill health. He afterwards establish-
ed the “ Plain Dealer™ in 1836. \Vithin two years after,
he received an appointment to the Gustemala Mission,
from the then President. Mr. Van Buren ; but dedlining
hea!th had by this time broken down his constitution, and
his (riends were shortly afterwards called upon to depiore
and grieve over h s loss,

To his friecnds he appears to have been ardently sttach-
ed. In pol'tcs he was always a vigorous. eloquent, and
independent leader. In his religious opinions, he declared
to s friend, “that in religirn he was an inquirer. not &
doubter.”’ In private life he was distinguished for the mild-
ness of h's disposition and the courtesy of his manners.

To perpetuate his public career, the Democratic young
men of New-York have naised to his memory a chaste
monument of marble, which is plsced over his remains in
the Episcopal Burying Ground of New Rochelle.

* Mr. Legzett's father was a sative of New Rechalle, and actively eo-
gaged in the revelutionary streggle.



LIST OF THE TOWN OFFICERS, &c.
For the Year 1842,

Supervisor,
LAWRENCE DAVENPORT, Esa.

Towm Clerk.
Mr. BENJAMIN H. CARPENXTER.

Assessors,
M. R. WOOD, Mr. MICHAEL McKEEL, Mr. J. B. UNDERHILL.

Commissioners of Highways.
JAMES P. HUNTINGTON, Esa , Mr. X. PCRDY,
Mr. JOHN SOCLICE.

Commissioners of Common Schonls,
Ms. GREORGE CASE, Mr. J. LE COUNT, Mr. J. UNDERHILL.

Inspectors of Common Schonls,
Mr. E. W. VORIS, Mr. G. CASE.

Overseers of Poor,
Me. JOEN ROPKINS, Mr. JOHN SECOR.

Constable,
Mr. THOMAS RICHE.

Justices of the Peace,
JAMES P. RUXTINGTOX, Esa., PRORPFR LE FEVRE. Esq,
JAMES BARTON, Esq., ANDREW A. COUTANT, Esn.

Physicians,
Dr. SMITH, Dr. MOULTOYN, Dr. VORIS, Dr. DAVENPORT.
Attorneys,

DAVID HARRISON, Fsq.. WILLIAM McCLELLAX, Es.,
GEORGE CASE. D



LIST OF COACHES, STAGES, ke

Cox’s Suxxer ARRANGEXENT.—The Tally-Ho (Daily)
Line, to kast Chester, New Rochelle. and Mamaroneck. via
Harlem Kail Koad. starts from the Mansion House. New
Rochelle.-every morning (Sundays excepted) at 7 o'clock
A. M.. through East Chester to the Rail Roed, Fordham.

Cox's second Cosch leaves the Mansion House. New
Rochelle, cvery afternoon (Sundays excepted) at 4 o'clock
P. M.. througzh East Chester to the Rail Road. Fordham.
Passengers by this line must leave the city by Rail Road
at S o'clock A. M.. and at 4 o'clock P. M., for Fordham,
where Post Coaches are in rcadiness to convey them to
East Chester. New Rochelle, and Mamaroneck.

The Proprietor has located his otfice at the West Chester
House. cor:ier of Broome Street and the Bowery, where a
suite of Private Rooms has been recently fitted up by
Ches. S. Mathews, Proprietor of the West Chester Houss,
No. 21 Bowery.

Hawxss' Stage leaves New Rochelle every Mondsy snd
Friday, at 9 o'clock A. M., for New-York, returning the
following day.

GALLAUDET'S Stage leaves New Rochelle every Tuesday
and Friday, at S o'clock A. M,

J. BoxxETT's Stage leaves New Rochelle every Tuesdsy
and Friday, at 8 o’clock A. M., for New-York.

The NEw Yorx and Ngw Havex Mail Line leave the
West Chester Hotel. No. 21 Bowery, New York. every
morning at half-pest 7 o'clock. (Sundays excepted.) when
it leaves at 1 o'clock A. M., pessing through Harlem. West
Chester, Pelbam, New Rochelle, Mamaroneck. Rye, Port
Chester. &c. to New Haven ; returning, will leave the Ton-
tine Hotel, New Haven, every day at 8 o’clock. Passengers
by this line can take the Rail Road to Roston.



THE POST-OFFICE, NEW ROCHELLE.

Letters and Newspapers delivered from this Office every
moming and afternoon (Sundays excepted) throughout the
yesr.

The Mail from New York artives at 11 o'clock A. M. ;
Crom the Easst at 6 o'dlock P. M.

Letters to go the same day 1o New York. must iueput
in before 5 o’clock in summer, and 6 in winter; if put in
after those bours, a day’s post will be lost.

Letters for the Eastern Mail must be deposited by 1
o'dock A. M



